
General Dick Stout Field
Airport Advisory Board

Minutes
September 15, 2015

Members Present: Chairman Charles Reeve, Mike Vercimak, Laron Hall and Dean McNeill

Others Present: Art Granger, Kirt McDaniel, Bill & Lori Robinson, John & Kimberly Nielson, Rick 
Eddy, Mike and Irene Bird, Wayne Benzon, Mac J. Hall, Than Naegle, Lynn Espinoza and Connie Martin.

Item #1 Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance and Prayer

Dean McNeill called the meeting to order and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  Charles Reeve offered prayer.

Item #2 Review Minutes of July 21st Meeting

There was not a full Quorum present, so the minutes could not be approved.  This item will be tabled 
until next month.

Item #3 Report on Fencing Project

Mike reported the fencing project has been approved by the City Council.  Bids were opened and Taylor 
Made Fencing was the low bidder.  They need to be approved by the FAA before the project can proceed.
Once begun, the project should only take about 30 days.  It is on track to be completed this year.  Dean 
mentioned the next project will be the refurbishing of the runway.  One resident asked about the fence 
and its boundaries.  Dean stated it will be a seven foot high fence with a double strand of barbed wire at 
the top.  It will encompass the full perimeter of the airport.

Item #4 Discuss the Helicopter Activity at the Airport

Art explained there have been a lot of complaints about the noise the helicopters are making at the 
airport.  One of the residents present asked about this company and where they came from.  Art 
explained they are a flight school based in Cedar City called Upper Limit.  They cater mostly to veterans.  
They fly in from Cedar City about 10:00 am every day of the week and stay until 8:00 pm.  They are 
making about 84 decibels of noise. Art explained a commercial jet only makes 74 decibels of noise.
One of the residents asked if there was a City noise ordinance.  Dean explained the City has very little 
control over the noise at the airport.  The runway is mostly funded by the FAA and they make the rules.  
Art provided a fact sheet which explains what the City can and cannot do according to FAA rules.  There 
was a question about licensing.  The company is licensed in Cedar City and they have a right to take off 
and land at any FAA owned airport.  Dean explained they use the runway to limit the amount of debris 
that is kicked up.  Charles explained there are rules they have to follow for flight training and it is 
required they train at an airport.  Someone asked if the Board could consult with Cedar City and other 



communities that are dealing with this same problem to see what they have done to combat the noise.  
There was also some discussion about having the Upper Limit Company use other airports in the area 
that are not so close to residential areas such as St George and Colorado City.  There was also a 
discussion about having them build a private landing strip away from population.

 There was a discussion about the Hurricane airport being an uncontrolled airport.  Dean explained that 
there is no tower or air traffic control in place.  Pilots listen in on the same frequency and announce their
intentions to take off or land.  They watch out for each other to avoid collisions.  Mike asked Rick Eddy if 
he has seen any safety issues with the helicopters.  Rick has not seen any so far.  He explained the FAA 
provides 90% of the funding for municipal airports and the communities are expected to abide by their 
rules.  If a municipality chose to discontinue the use of the airport, all funds would need to be returned 
to the FAA.  The municipalities have very little control.  Someone suggested getting the EPA involved and 
asked how long the airport has been in place.  Charles explained the airport has been in place since 
World War II. 

There was a discussion about how low the aircraft can fly.  Charles explained the airport protection zone.
Building is restricted inside the zone.  There is no restriction on how low the helicopters can fly.  There 
was a question about liability.  Aircraft owners are not required to carry insurance.  One of the residents 
explained this situation has been life altering.  When they purchased their home a couple of years ago, 
this was not a problem.  If they had known this was going to happen, they would not have purchased 
here.  He would appreciate anything the City can do to resolve this situation.  Dean invited the residents 
to come back next month.  The Board will do some investigating and provide some any additional 
information at that time.

Item #5 Report on Airport Open House

Art reported on the Airport Open House to be held on October 10th from 10:00 am to 3:00 pm.  There 
will be a Fly In and lots of activities.  There will be possible fly bys from the military, Remote Control 
demonstrations and vendors.  Everything is in place.

Item #6 New Business

There was no new business.

Meeting adjourned at 10:00 am.


